
Knox County Board  
Member Packet 

Regular Meeting of the Board 
March 27, 2024 

This packet contains the meeting’s agenda, accompanying 
documentation, and minutes of recent standing committee meetings. 

Compiled by Scott G. Erickson 
Knox County Clerk / Recorder



KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
NICOLE BYERLY  MELANIE RICE 

CORY TEEL  GLORIA CLIFF  
 ANNA BROWNLEE 

 
 

 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
OF THE KNOX COUNTY BOARD ON MARCH 27, 2024 

 
 

In accordance with action taken at its February 28, 2024, regular 

meeting, the Knox County Board ordered that members of the Knox County 

Board will hereby meet in regular session at 6:00 p.m. on March 27, 2024, 

at the Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois and via teleconference 

due to public gathering restrictions. 

Along with this notice is the agenda of matters to be discussed at said 

meeting.  The agenda can also be accessed through our web site at 

www.KnoxClerk.org. 

 

DATED: March 22, 2024      ______________________ 
                    Scott G. Erickson 

Knox County Clerk and 
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board 

 

 
Please Note: 

There will be a closed session starting at 
5:15PM for personnel, collective bargaining, 
security procedures, property, and pending 

litigation. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 1 

 
Knox County Board 

 

Regular Monthly Meeting – March 2024 
Galesburg City Hall, Galesburg, Illinois  

And Via Teleconference for 
Public Viewing Access 

March 27, 2024 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Special Events 

5:15 p.m.  Closed Session for Personnel, Collective Negotiations, 
Security Procedures, Property, and Pending Litigation. (5 
ILCS 120/2c-1,2,8, & 11) 

   
Opening Ceremonies 
6:00 p.m.  Call to Order (Chairman) 
   

  Roll Call (Clerk) 
   

  Declaration of Quorum (Chairman) 
   

  Proclamation (Sheriff) 
   

  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America (Chairman) 

   

  Moment of Silence. (In lieu of a formal Invocation). 
   

  Additions to the Agenda (for discussion only) 
 
Public Comment 
 
Consent Agenda (R/C) 
Item 1 Approve Minutes of the Board Meeting on February 28, 2024. 
Item 2 Presentation Sales tax and various taxes for month of December 2023 

in the amounts of $157,036.12 and $40,706.71 and public 
safety tax in the amount of $270,676.18. 

   
Items for the Chairman 
Item 3 Approve R/C Proclamation on Public Health Week in Knox County. 
Item 4 Approve R/C Proclamation on National County Government Month. 
Item 5 Approve R/C Appointment of Trustee to Galesburg Sanitary District of 

Mike Landon. (Re-Appointment) 
Item 6 Approve R/C Approve Option to Vacate Offer on Property Acquisition (If 

Necessary) 
   
Report – Committee on Ways and Means. 
Item 7 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 2 

Item 8 Approve R/C Approve Calendar for Budget Preparation. (Treasurer) 
Item 9 Approve R/C Approve Bid for ADA Ramp Replacement at Courthouse. 
Item 10 Approve R/C Approve Bid and Bring Back for Basement Entrance 

Renovations. 
Item 11 Approve R/C Approve Bid and Bring Back for Dumpster Area 

Improvements. 
Item 12 Approve R/C Approve Resolution to Modify Previous ARPA Resolution 

for Property Acquisition. 
Item 13 Approve R/C Approve Resolution on Emergency Replacement of Hot 

Water System at Mary Davis Home. 
   
Report – Committee on Public Safety and Justice. 
Item 14 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 15 Approve R/C Approve Contract for Dieting Prisoners with Warren 

County. (Sheriff) 
Item 16 Approve R/C Approve Resolution for Housing Inmates from Warren 

County Sheriff. (Sheriff) 
Item 17 Approve R/C Approve Intergovernmental Agreement between Knox 

County Sheriff and Cook County Sheriff for Inmate 
Housing.  (Sheriff) 

Item 18 Approve R/C Approve Bid and Bring Back for Video Security System for 
Courthouse and Jail. (Sheriff) 

   
Report – Committee on Infrastructure 
Item 19 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 20 Approve R/C Approve Payment of Facility Vouchers for Building 

Evaluation. 
Item 21 Approve R/C Approve Survey of Proposed Property Acquisition (Subject 

to Board Approval of Purchase of Property). 
Item 22 Approve R/C Approve Engineering Services Agreement for Lynn 

Township Bridge Replacement, Section 23-11057-00-BR. 
(Highway) 

Item 23 Approve R/C Approve Resolution for Certificate of Authority for County 
Engineer to Enter into Joint Participation Agreement for 
Salt Procurement. (Highway) 

Item 24 Approve R/C Approve Resolution for Improvement Under Illinois 
Highway Code, Section 20-00016-77-RS. (Highway) 

Item 25 Approve R/C Approve Resolution Awarding MFT Aggregate Bids for 
Various Townships, Section 24-XX000-00-GM. (Highway) 

Item 26 Approve R/C Approve Resolution Awarding Bituminous Materials bids, 
Section 24-XX000-00-GM. (Highway) 

Item 27 Approve R/C Approve Resolution Awarding Culvert Pipe Bids for Knox 
County, Section 24-00000-00-CB. (Highway) 

   
Report – Committee on Health and Human Services 
Item 28 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 29 Approve R/C Approve Resolution on Emergency Expenditure for 

Sprinkler Pump and Nursing Home 
   
Reports – External Committees Assigned to Board Members 
Reports from these Committees will be placed on file in the County Clerk’s office.  No 
presentations will be provided during the meeting.  If you have specific questions, please direct 
them to the specific Board representative. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 3 

Knox County Board of Health (Bondi) 
Galesburg Convention and Visitors Bureau (Pugh) 

9-1-1 Committee (Hawkinson)
Knox County Area Partnership for Economic Development 

Prairie Hills Resources Board (Smith) 
United Council of Counties (Bacon) 
Western Illinois Regional Council 

Knox County Mental Health 708 Board (Weiss) 
University of Illinois Extension Office (Boone) 

Knox County Civic Center Authority – Orpheum Board (Sandoval) 

Claims Against the County – R/C 
Item 30 Approve R/C Approve Opening of Budget for Line Item Changes. (If 

Necessary) 
Item 31 Presentation Presentation of the Proposed Budget Line Item Changes 
Item 32 Approve R/C Approval of Proposed Line Item Changes. (If Necessary) 
Item 33 Presentation  Review of Manual Checks Issued for Current Cycle. 
Item 34 Approve R/C Claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the 

Committee Meetings of March 2024, Board Meeting in 
February, and other claims for per diem from Meetings. 

Item 35 Approve R/C Claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of       
February 29, 2024 through March 27, 2024 (ordering that 
invoices be accepted and approved and that the County 
Clerk and County Treasurer be authorized and directed to 
issue County Warrants in payment of the bills in the 
aggregate amount approved by the County Board) 

Announcements 
Item 36 Presentation The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, 

April 24, 2024, 6:00 p.m., at Galesburg City Hall Council 
Chambers. 

Closing Ceremonies 
Item 37 Presentation Adjournment of meeting until next scheduled meeting of 

the Board. 

* CONSENT AGENDA:  All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the
Board and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
Member or citizen so requests; in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will
be considered separately.

** Action item to be used only if previous Motion to Remove from Table is approved. 

VOTING CHART:  R/C = Roll Call Vote; Voice = Voice Vote; 2/3 = 2/3rds Vote 

PLEASE NOTE:  Except for emergency personnel, please turn off all cellular telephones and paging 
devices during the meeting. 



 
PROCLAMATION OF NATIONAL  

PUBLIC HEALTH WEEK IN KNOX COUNTY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the week of April 1st through the 7th 2024, is recognized 
and known as National Public Health Week; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public health fundamentally works to prevent, promote, 
and protect the health of the entire Knox County community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public health improves the quality of life, reduces 
human suffering, and is essential to every part of our life.  Every day, the 
public health field is working – often behind the scenes – to prevent 
hazards and keep people healthy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public health professionals have been and will continue 
to shape Knox County for the better, working together with scientific and 
technological advances, expanding access to immunizations, improving 
food safety, advocating for clean air and water, eliminating poisonous lead 
hazards, reducing the spread of infectious diseases, and working to 
eliminate health disparities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, during National Public Health Week we commit to the 
Knox County Health Department vision of “Healthy People in a Healthy 
Community”.  Together, we share our appreciation to all those who strive 
to promote public health and strengthen our community. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, I, Jared Hawkinson, Chair of the Knox County 
Board of Knox County Illinois do hereby proclaim that the week of April 1st 
through the 7th 2024 as Public Health Week 2024 in Knox County, Illinois.  
We call upon the residents, businesses, and governmental agencies in 
Knox County to observe this week by helping our families, friends, 
neighbors, co-workers, and leaders to better understand the value of public 
health and supporting the great accomplishments of public health. 
 
Dated this 27th day of March, 2024. 
 
 

 
      Hon. Jared Hawkinson 

County Board Chair 
Attest: 
 

 
Scott G. Erickson, Knox County Clerk 
 



 
PROCLAMATION OF APRIL AS NATIONAL 

COUNTY GOVERNMENT MONTH IN KNOX COUNTY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the nation’s 3,069 counties serving more than 330 
million Americans provide essential services to create healthy, safe, and 
vibrant communities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, counties provide health services, administer justice, 
keep communities safe, foster economic opportunities and much more; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Knox County, Illinois and all other counties take pride in 
our responsibility to protect and enhance the health, wellbeing, and safety 
of our residents in efficient and cost-effective ways; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the leadership of National Association of 
Counties President Mary Jo McGuire, NACo is demonstrating how 
Counties are moving “Forward Together” by connecting, inspiring, and 
leading; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each year since 1991 the National Association of 
Counties has encouraged counties across the country to elevate 
awareness of county responsibilities, programs, and services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Knox County strives to serve its residents to the best of 
its ability and encourages suggestions and ideas on how to improve its 
performance. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, I, Jared Hawkinson, Chair of the Knox County 
Board of Knox County Illinois do hereby proclaim that the month of April 
2024 as National County Government Month and encourages all county 
residents to reflect on how they can help to make county government the 
best it can be. 
 
Dated this 27th day of March, 2024. 
 
 

 
      Hon. Jared Hawkinson 

County Board Chair 
 
Attest: 
 

 
Scott G. Erickson, Knox County Clerk 
 









THE COUNTY OF KNOX 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 

OFFICE OF THE 
KNOX COUNTY BOARD 

 
 

Ways & Means 
Committee 

 
Brian Friedrich 

Committee Chairman 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Date / Time of Meeting: March 21, 2024 @ 6pm 
Location of Meeting: Annex Conference Room 

 
Call to Order 

 
Roll Call: Committee Chairman Friedrich, Amanda, Bondi, Bacon, Pugh, Kramer, Olinger, Sandoval 

 
Public Comment 

Modifications to Agenda 

Approval of Prior Months Minutes 
 

Knox County Clerk/Recorder 
● Report 

 
Knox County Assessor/Zoning/GIS 
● Report 

 
Knox County Treasurer 
● Report 
● Approve Calendar for Budget Preparation 

 
Insurance/Liability Information 
● Report 

 
Budget/County Board/ARPA/Misc. 
● Financial & Personnel Expenses Report from Treasurer 
● Approve Bid for ADA Ramp Replacement at Courthouse 
● Approve Infrastructure Committee Request to modify ARPA Resolution from $15,000 to $20,000. (Bondi) 
● Approve Emergency Replacement of Hot Water System at Mary Davis Home. 

 
Review / Approval of Bills 

Old/New Business        
 

Executive Session (If necessary) 
Adjournment 



THECOUNTY OFKNOX
STATE OF ILLINOIS

OFFICE OF THE

KNOXCOUNTYBOARD

Ways &Means
Committee

Brian Friedrich
Committee Chairman

OPEN SESSION MINUTES

Date of Meeting: Thursday February 22, 2024
Time of Meeting: 6pm
Location of Meeting: Knox County Annex Conference Room

Attendance: Committee Chairman Friedrich, Smith, Bondi, Bacon, Pugh, Kramer, Olinger, Sandoval

Others in Attendance: Board Chairman Hawkinson, Member Nache, Treasurer Davis, Clerk/Recorder Erickson, Assessor
Hotchstetor

Committee Chairman Friedrich called the meeting to order at 1800hrs and took roll call.

Public comment was announced with no members of the public requesting to provide comment.

There were no modifications to the agenda.

Member Kramer motioned with Member Bondi making a second to approve the meeting minutes from July 2023. Motion
passed unanimously by voice vote.

Clerk/Recorder
Knox County Clerk/Recorder provided his report and advised a copy of the report was in the committee’s GDrive.

Action Item(s)
None

Assessor/Zoning/GIS
The County Assessor provided the report and advised a copy was in the committee’s GDrive. Shared that she has spoke
with Dist 205 about sharing cost of tax program with no confirmation yet. She is also waiting to roll to the new year.

Action Item(s)
None

Treasurer
Treasurer Davis presented her report that is on the GDrive. Reminded the board that contracts that have to do with financial
items need to be relayed to the Treasurer ASAP for filing and proper financial handling. Provided that there was no update
thus far on the MADCO/Federal court case but would followup with the States Attorney. Advised that the ClearGov program
transition is not working as expected and has a meeting with the company. Chair Friedrich asked and spoke about the
upcoming budget plans and the need to have a plan soon to publish. Member Bacon shared there was no budget changes
for the NH this month but would be some next month.

Action Item(s)
- Approve required Kill Claim - Bacon/Sandoval - Currently no claims - Passed unanimously
- Approve Bid and Bring Back Health Insurance - Kramer/Smith - Davis advised dental is locked until 2025 and vision

until 2025 so this is only for Health Insurance. Advised that Stop Loss may return high as 2 employees are already
at the stop loss rate - Passed unanimously



Budget / County Board / ARPA / MISC
Treasurer Davis briefly reviewed the financial data that was provided. Advised that insurance/liability stop loss $110,000 and
$283,126.66 which is higher than last year at the same time. Financial packet is in the GDrive. Davis has a meeting with the
Sheriffs Office the next day regarding county inmate. Advised that larger items from ARPA being expended is the 2nd
installment for the Galesburg Community Foundation in the amount of $500,000 and for Klinger & Associates for the work so
far at 50 East Main Street.

Action Items
Budget Change - Several departments provided changes

- Motion by Bondi, Second by Kramer - Voice Vote - Passed unanimously

Review/Approval of Bills
Motion by Sandoval, Second by Kramer - Voice Vote - Passed unanimously

Old/New Business
None

Committee Chairman Friedrich advised he wasn't aware of any need for an executive session and asked if there was a need
by the committee.

Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Member Smith and seconded by Member Olinger. Voice Vote - Passed
unanimously. Adjournment at 1825hrs



 
 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK & RECORDER 

 
      NICOLE BYERLY ● MELANIE RICE-WEIK    

CORY TEEL  ●  GLORIA CLIFF  
ANNA BROWNLEE 

                          
                                      

   

 
 

KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

Report of the Office of County Clerk & Recorder 
MARCH 2024 

 
 
Honorable Ways and Means Committee, Chair Brian Friedrich presiding: 
 
 The following is my report on the State of the office for the month of March 
2024.  As always, if you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 
any time. 
 
County Clerk’s Office 
 
 In the County Clerk’s office, we continue to complete requests for vital 
records and licenses.  The Off-Highway vehicle program is continuing to keep 
busy and we are currently at 493 licenses sold.  The temporary license program 
is still in development with a projected implementation this Spring. 
 
 I am continuing to work with VISA and NACo for a webinar on the 
KNOXPAY credit card payment program that we completed the pilot program on.  
The final report is scheduled for release in April. 
 
Elections Division 
 
 Election operations continue after a successful Primary Election.  Voter 
turnout for the County was at 15.23%.   
 
 
Recorder’s Office 
 
 In the Recorder’s office we continue to process the property records for 
land sales in the County.  We are working on a promotional program for the 
Honor Rewards program for Veterans to be rolled out in the Spring. 



 
 
General Office Information 
 
 We have the following items for action at this meeting: 
 
No action items for this month. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted this 21st day of March, 2024. 
 

 
Scott G. Erickson, CCO 
Knox County Clerk & Recorder 









ASSESSMENT / ZONING / GIS REPORT

March 27, 2024

ASSESSMENT OFFICE

We are working on Deeds, we only have 1 user name to access the Laredo system to print and 

review deeds.  We are doing a Pilot Term with Just Appraised.  They are a company that the software 

merges the incoming new deeds from Laredo into DevNet names and sales tabs.  Our office reviews 

and approves the edits and it is going to be a great time saver as we do not have to do all the typing 

into all the fields.  This would alleviate the need for additional Laredo logins.  This software would 

help get us caught up on our deed changes so that we would no longer be behind and also alleviate the 

current need for additional personnel in our office. The company is nation wide but new to the state of 

Illinois.  Currently McHenry county is the only other county in Illinois that has started the Pilot Term 

besides us.  I am just waiting for Scott to release the Laredo Deeds directly to Just Appraised.  The 

cost of this software will be less then the cost of additional personnel and all the benefits.  As they are 

new to Illinois we have some negotiating room in the cost for next year.  The Pilot Term amount was 

$4750.00 and I was able to work that out of my current budget.

ZONING 

 There was none (0) Adjudication hearings in February of 2024. ZBA had none (0) cases in 

February 2024. The Zoning office issued forty-two (42) building permits for February 2024 with an 

EAV of $522,230 compared to seventeen (17) building permits for February 2023 with an EAV of 

$543,850.

Application fees collected since January 1
st
 2024: $1600.00 (new fee of 25.00 per application)

Missi Wheeler

Knox County Zoning Officer

THE GIS REPORT 

The new enterprise deployment is moving forward again. As soon as the new domain is 

finalized, with the IT department’s help, we should be able to finish the install. There are a lot of

moving pieces but at least they are moving in the right direction.

A map book, with no spray zones, has been completed to aid in their roadside pesticide 

application process. I had hoped to have an application, on the new install, done by now, but this

will work until it is done,

The Williamsfield Sanitary District requested a map of parcels paying into the district. That has 

been completed. The city Assessor’s office had some problems with a desktop mapping application. 

They changed how they accessed some of the resources on our network, and that affected the maps. 

We found a work around that solves the problem for now. The long-term solution will be an internal 

map that will be tailored to their needs. It is in the planning stage now.

Bill Lotz

Respectfully submitted,

Sonia Hochstetler, CIAO, CCAO



























OWNER NAME: Bid Date:

Bid Location:

Bid Time: 

Project No.:

Laverdiere 
Construction Otto Baum Company Hein Construction

Brandt 
Construction

X X X X

X X X X

$136,886.00 $96,800.00 $94,000.00 $125,000.00
$447,410.00 $367,800.00 $384,000.00 $585,000.00

X X X X
$157,086.00 $121,800.00 $119,000.00 $150,000.00
$454,510.00 $392,800.00 $409,000.00 $610,000.00

Respectfully Submitted By:

March 20, 2024
Project Manager Name Date

Klingner & Associates, PC

QUINCY ∙ GALESBURG ∙ BURLINGTON ∙ PELLA ∙ DAVENPORT ∙ HANNIBAL ∙ COLUMBIA ∙ DAVENPORT

Wednesday, March 20, 2024
Knox County Courthouse - 
County Clerk's Office, 
Galesburg, Illinois

11:30 AM

23-3022

Knox County

Courthouse - Ramp ReplacementPROJECT NAME:

Base Bid #2 + Allowance

Cody N Basham

Addenda Acknowledged

Bid Bond or Certified Check

Base Bid #1 - South Ramp Replacement

Base Bid #2 - New East Ramp & Stair

Base Bid #1 + Allowance

General Contingency Allowance ($25,000.00)

Contractor 

 BID TABULATION

Addendum 1

www.klingner.com



THE COUNTY OF KNOX
STATE OF ILLINOIS

OFFICE OF THE
KNOX COUNTY BOARD

PUBLIC SAFETY & JUSTICE 
COMMITTEE

________________________________________________________________________________

KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE ∙ 200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET ∙ GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 ∙ (309) 345-
3815 ∙ FAX: (309) 345-3801 ∙ WEBSITE: WWW.CO.KNOX.IL.US ∙

OPEN MINUTES

Date of Meeting: Feb 19, 2024 
Time of Meeting: 6:00 pm
Location of Meeting: Knox County Annex Conference Room
Zoom# 7295327867

6:00 PM Call to Order by Committee Chair Kramer and  roll call was taken,
Attendance:Committee Chair Kramer, Weiss, Boone, Cohen, Pugh, and Sandoval 

6:00 PM-quorum was declared. 

6:00 PM- Committee Chair Kramer called for Public Comment and there was none. 

6:00 PM - Review of any Additions, Deletions and Corrections to Agenda and there was none.

6:01 Chairman Kramer motioned to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Sandoval– motion passed 
unanimously by voice vote. 

6:01 pm- Chairman Kramer  motioned to approve prior months' minutes, seconded by Weiss–motion passed unanimously 
by voice vote. 

Mary Davis Home
Supt. Steck present and provided monthly report and copy of report for  Board Packet

Sheriff’s Office
Officer L. May present and provided an oral report. Sheriff Harlan not present but provided monthly report for Board 
Packet

States Attorney
No report submitted

Public Defender
No report submitted

Circuit Clerk
No report submitted 

Judicial
No report submitted

Coroner
No report submitted 

Old Business
No old business entered for discussion

New Business
No new business entered for discussion 

Bills



6:09 PM-Motion made to approve bills by Sandoval and second by Cohenl to advance the bills as presented.  Motion 
passed unanimously by voice vote.

6:10 PM -Chair Kramer motioned to adjourn and second by Weiss.  Motion passed unanimously by voice vote at 6:10  PM 









Committee Meeting Report
MARY DAVIS HOME

March 18th, 2024

Financial: 

For February 2024, the Mary Davis Home’s average population was 14 
clients per day.  Of that number, 10 of those clients were placed in detention 
by outside counties.  As a result, we billed out $41,695.00 for childcare 
costs. 

Knox County averaged 4 clients per day saving $14,880.00.

 No new reimbursement payments since the last meeting.

Action Items:  None

Old Business: Our IDJJ inspection went very well.  They were pleased to 
see the numerous changes we have made. They complimented our efforts in 
the education section with the addition of our OWL video conferencing 
system; however, that will still be an area of noncompliance due to lack of a 
special education teacher.

Future items: 



Catering  Specifications and Contract
for

Dieting Prisoners
Between 

Knox County Sheriff’s Office 
(hereafter known as Caterer)

And
Warren County Sheriff’s Office

1. Meals are to be prepared in compliance with the Illinois County Jail Standards. Meals must be
prepared to meet Warren County and state health guidelines. Persons supervising the handling of
food must have their food handling card, and licenses must be posted at the place of food
preparation. Caterer must be prepared to show proof of documentation to an Illinois Department
of Corrections inspector, state or local health board representative, or Warren County Sheriff’s
Office representative.

2. Food must be prepared each day for the Warren County Jail, Monmouth, IL. Food must be
individually packaged in Styrofoam, plastic, or original unopened container at the preparation
site, such that jail personnel will not handle open foods or further prepare the meals other than
delivering same to the inmate. Plastic utensils will also be provided by caterer as needed.

3. Caterer will provide one hot meal and one cold meal per day. One hot meal per day will be
prepared for pick up no earlier  than 11:00 O’clock AM nor later than 12:00 O’clock PM. Food
must arrive in carriers or containers sufficient to maintain the meal’s hot temperature through
delivery to the inmate. In addition to the hot meals, cold supper meals will be delivered for
storage at the Warren County jail.

4. Caterer must provide a weekly menu with calorie count to the Warren County jail. Menu will
satisfy calorie requirements as set forth in the Illinois County Jail Standards, and will be
diversified to avoid monotony in diet. An e-mail or fax will satisfy this requirement. A rotating
menu is acceptable as long as any deviation is documented to reflect the true content of delivery.

5. From time to time it may be necessary to provide an individual meal different from those
created in bulk, to satisfy avoidance of any food allergies as reported by the inmate.

6. The Warren County Jail will provide the caterer a count of meals required by 9:00 O’clock
AM each day. The Warren County Jail is responsible for ordering enough meals to satisfy need,
and will accept overages should the inmate population decrease prior to receipt of ordered meals.

7. The Warren County Jail reserves the right to reject as a whole, or by individual portion meals
received based on inappropriate temperature, inferior taste/smell, unacceptable appearance or
inadequate quantity. Should such reject occur, the caterer will be responsible for immediately
procuring substitute meals in order for the inmates to be fed in a timely fashion.



8. The Warren County Sheriff, acting as an agent of Warren County accepts Caterer’s proposal
of meals priced as follows:   Lunch at $3.00 Dinner at $3.00 per individual meal.

10. Caterer will bill the Warren County Sheriff monthly.  Bills will be forwarded to the
appropriate Warren County Board subcommittee and/or the County board for payment at the
regularly scheduled meetings.

11. Termination of this contract will be 30 days notice by either party, with or without cause on
or through November 30, 2024.  If the Warren County Sheriff’s Office or the Warren County
Board determine conditions of the contract are not being met, the contract may be terminated
with 10 days notice in writing. Termination of the contract may also be made earlier if Caterer
and Warren County mutually agree upon such termination and a date to do so.

Enacted and approved this ___ day of ______________, _______ by the Knox County Board.

COUNTY OF KNOX COUNTY OF WARREN

______________________________ ______________________________
Jared M Hawkinson, Chairman           Michael Pearson, Chairman 

______________________________           ______________________________
Scott G. Erickson, County Clerk           Tina M. Conard, County Clerk

_______________________________ _____________________________
Jack C. Harlan JR.            Martin Edwards
Knox County Sheriff            Warren County Sheriff



RESOLUTION FOR INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN KNOX COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND WARREN COUNTY, ILLINOIS

REGARDING HOUSING OF INMATES

WHEREAS, Knox County Board and Warren County Board are committed to providing needed 
services to their residents at an affordable cost; and

WHEREAS, the Knox County Sheriff operates a jail facility in good standing with the Illinois 
Department of Corrections and with available capacity for more inmates; and 

WHEREAS, Warren County recognizes the economic advantages of housing their prisoners at 
the Knox County Jail; and

WHEREAS, by the authority granted to the Counties pursuant to the State of Illinois Constitution 
of 1970, Article 7, Section 10, the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, as amended and 
the County Jail Act, as amended, the counties enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement.

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and covenants 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed between the Counties as follows:

1. This Agreement shall take effect on the 1st day of January 2024 for a term of one
year.

2. Warren County shall pay Knox County monthly, an amount equal to the sum of
$55.00 per inmate per day, to include food, clothing and basic necessity.

3. Warren County shall reimburse Knox County for any health/dental care costs
required to be provided to Warren County inmates as required by law and
outside of Knox Counties Agreement with current medical provider. Warren
County will be responsible for the custody of any Warren County inmate for any
extended (>8 hours) hospitalization or shall reimburse Knox County for any costs
incurred to secure custody at the actual rate off pay for the Correctional Officer or
Deputy securing the inmate.

4. Knox County shall be responsible for appropriate staffing, training and operations
of the jail facility in compliance with Federal Corrections and Illinois Department
of Corrections standards.

5. Transportations of inmates shall be coordinated by the Sheriffs of Knox and
Warren County to include necessary transport of at risk releasees who were
detained at Knox County jail whom reside in Warren County. Conditions to
consider include physical and medical condition of the releasee and weather
conditions at the time of release.

6. In case by reason of force majeure either County shall be rendered unable wholly
or in part to carry out its obligation under this Agreement, then if such County
shall give notice and full particulars of such force majeure in writing to the other
County within a reasonable time after occurrence of the event or cause relied on,
the obligation of the County giving such notice, so far as it is affected by such
force majeure shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability then



claimed, but for no longer period, and any such County shall endeavor to remove 
or overcome such inability with all reasonable efforts. The term “force majeure” 
as employed herein shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other industrial 
disturbances, acts of public enemy, order of any kind of the Government of the 
United States, of the State of Illinois, or of any civil of military authority, 
insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslide, lightning, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, 
storms, floods, washouts, droughts, restraints of government and people, civil 
disturbance, explosions, breakage, or accidents to machine, pipelines, partial or 
entire failure to water supply, and inability on the part of Knox County to accept 
prisoners to the Jail facility, on account of any other causes not reasonably within 
the control of the County claiming such inability. The settlement of strikes and 
lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the county having the difficulty 
and that the above requirement that any “Force Majeure” shall be remedied with 
all reasonable dispatch shall not require the settlement of strikes and lockouts by 
acceding to the demands of the opposing party or parties when such settlement 
is unfavorable to it in the judgment of the County having the difficulty.

Agreement may be cancelled within 30-day notice in writing via certified mail, by 
either party. 

Enacted and approved this ___ day of ______________, _______ by the Knox County Board.

COUNTY OF KNOX COUNTY OF WARREN

______________________________ ______________________________
Jared M Hawkinson, Chairman           Michael Pearson, Chairman 

______________________________           ______________________________
Scott G. Erickson, County Clerk           Tina M. Conard, County Clerk

_______________________________ _____________________________
Jack C. Harlan JR.            Martin Edwards
Knox County Sheriff            Warren County Sheriff



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF COOK
ON BEHALF OF THE COOK COUNTY SHERIFF

AND 
THE COUNTY OF KNOX 

ON BEHALF OF THE KNOX COUNTY SHERIFF

This Intergovernmental Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement:) is entered into by and between the County 
of Cook, Illinois, a body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Sheriff of Cook County (collectively referred to as 
“Cook County”) and the County of Knox, Illinois, a body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Sheriff of Knox 
County (collectively referred to as “Knox County”), pursuant to authority granted by the Illinois Constitution of 
1970, Article VII, Section 10 and Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 22011 et seq. Cook County and 
Knox County are referred to herein individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.”

I. RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, authorizes units of 
local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not prohibited by law or 
ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, 5 ILCS 220/1, entitled the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, provides that any power or 
powers, privileges or authority exercised, or which may be exercised by a unit of local government may be 
exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other unit of local government; and, 

WHEREAS, 5 ILCS 220/2, defines a public agency as follows:

“any unit of local government as defined in the Illinois Constitution of 1970, any school district, 
any public community college district, any public building commission, the State of Illinois, any 
agency of the State government or of the United States, or any other State, any political 
subdivision of another State, and any combination of the above pursuant to an intergovernmental 
agreement which includes provisions for a governing body of the agency created by the 
agreement.”

WHEREAS, the Cook County Sheriff’s Department of Corrections has a need for additional housing of 
individuals in custody (IICs) committed to its care and custody; and

WHEREAS, Knox County has available space for housing said IICs committed to the care and custody 
of the Sheriff of Cook County, and meets national and state correctional standards; and

WHEREAS, it is understood that IIC populations vary greatly each day, and it is further understood that 
the Knox County Jail will be utilized by the Sheriff of Cook County to place IICs in a secure environment to help 
address any safety and security issues facing the Cook County Department of Corrections and its IIC population; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set
forth herein, Cook County and Knox County hereby agree as follows:

II. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as though fully set forth:



III. TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall commence upon execution by both Parties and shall remain in effect until 
terminated. Either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to all Parties.

IV. PROVISION OF DETENTION SERVICES

A. IIC Housing Services: The Sheriff of Knox County agrees to provide IIC Housing Services
(“Housing") for Cook County IICs as hereinafter provided. Housing is defined as the secure
incarceration, consistent with the Constitution of the United States and all applicable Federal and
State laws, of IICs provided to Knox County by officials of the Cook County Department of
Corrections.

B. Detention Standards: Knox County agrees to operate the Knox County Jail in accordance with
the Illinois County Jail Standards regarding adequate food, medical services, bedding, clothing,
inspection, supervision, mail privileges, personal hygiene, facilities, haircuts, recreation,
commissary, visitation, laundry, religious ministrations and access to a television in the dayroom.

C. Location of Housing: Knox County and Cook County further agree that all housing made
available by Knox County will be at the Knox County Jail, located at 152 S. Kellogg St.,
Galesburg, IL 61401, until such time as the IIC housed for Cook County is transferred.

D. Scope of Services: Knox County further agrees as follows:

1. Commissary. The Sheriff of Knox County shall maintain a commissary account for each
Cook County IIC for the purposes of permitting purchases as allowed by the rules and
regulations of the Knox County Detention Center and ensure that commissary purchases
other than razors be returned with the purchasing IIC upon transfer out of the facility.

2. Inmate Funds. The Sheriff of Knox County agrees to hold monies of Cook County IICs while
they are in the Knox County Detention Center and return by check those monies to the IIC
upon return to Cook County Department of Corrections.

3. Clothing. Knox County will provide appropriate jail uniforms for each IIC accepted under
this Agreement.

4. Medical Services. Knox County shall provide all necessary medical services to all Cook
County IICs confined within the Knox County Detention Center under the terms of this
Agreement, while said IICs are housed at the Knox County Detention Center.

a. Prior to the IIC’s arrival, Cermak Health Services shall provide to Knox County, or
its designee, a transfer summary including, but not limited to, a list of major health
problems and current medications of each IIC, together with a list of any pending
health care appointments. This list shall include the date, time, location, and nature of
the appointment (e.g., type of specialty consultant or diagnostic procedure). Knox
County, or its designee, shall certify that the Knox County Detention Center can
provide the requisite medical services, including medication, prior to acceptance of
the IIC. Knox County, or its designee, shall destroy all medical records sent by
Cermak, for IICs that it does not accept.



b. Medical services will include all necessary medical, optical, dental, prescriptive,
psychiatric and psychological care including medical screenings, diagnosis,
treatments, medications, and specialist care deemed necessary by Knox County’s
medical providers. Health care appointments that are listed by Cermak as pending at
the time of transfer to Knox County shall not be cancelled by Knox County or its
designee.

c. Services related to medications and medical services received by Cook County IICs
while in the custody of Knox County shall be charged at available Medicaid and/or
public health rates. The ultimate financial responsibility for such costs shall be borne
by Cook County.

d. All bills for medical services from shall be paid in a timely manner.

e. Copies of all medical records related to the care or services received by IICs while in
Knox County shall be returned to Cermak Health Services in a sealed envelope at the
same time the IIC returns to Cook County.  All medical information and records shall
be maintained as confidential by both Parties in accordance with applicable law.

5. Fees. Knox County shall not charge any IICs any fees, other than those related to commissary
and telephone use, that are not certified by the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook County.

6. Prison Rape Elimination Act. Knox County shall adopt and comply with PREA standards. In
addition, Knox County shall ensure that all allegations of sexual assault are communicated to
the Cook County Sheriff’s Office and comply with Cook County requests for information
regarding compliance with PREA standards.

7. Inmate Discipline. Knox County shall provide copies of all Inmate Disciplinary tickets and
Disciplinary Hearing Board findings to Cook County upon return of the inmate to Cook
County Custody. All documents shall be kept separate from the medical records and
addressed to the Cook County Department of Corrections Classification Unit.

E. Number of IICs: It is expressly agreed by and between the Parties hereto that Cook County shall
send, and the Sheriff of Knox County shall accept, up to fifty (50) IICs as is agreed upon by the
Parties to this Agreement. The number of IICs agreed upon shall be evaluated on monthly basis
between the Parties hereto. The Parties agree that the Sheriff of Knox County has the right to
refuse to house or continue to house any IIC when deemed in the best interest of the Sheriff of
Knox County.

F. Per Diem: For the Housing Services being provided pursuant to this Agreement, Cook County
agrees to pay to Knox County in the amount of sixty ($60) dollars per day, per IIC. Billing shall
be on a monthly cycle and will the first full day of detention at the Knox County Detention
Center. Payments are to be received by Knox County within thirty (30) days of receipt by Cook
County. Knox County agrees to submit payment requests on County Form 29A with
documentation accompanying such payment request detailing the basis for such request.

G. Transportation of IICs: The Cook County Sheriff shall transport any and all IICs to and from
the Cook County Department of Corrections to and from the Knox County Detention Center. The
Sheriff of Cook County shall provide the Sheriff of Knox County for each IIC to be housed at the



Knox County Detention Center with a duly authorized copy of a commitment, mittimus and any 
other papers or documents authorizing detention by the Sheriff of Cook County.

1. Upon arrival at the Knox County Detention Center, those inmates that have been medically
predetermined, pursuant to Section IV.D.(4)(a) above, to be housed in Knox County shall be
transferred into the custody of the Knox County Sheriff.

2. A specific time for delivery and pick up of IICs shall be agreed upon by both Parties unless
exigent circumstances exist, or other coordinated agreements are mutually made.

3. Transportation to other origins or facilities from the Knox County Detention Center facility
other than to the Cook County Department of Corrections shall be mutually agreed between
the Sheriffs or their designees.

4. If the need arises for a Cook County IIC to be transported from Knox County to the Cook
County Department of Corrections and it does not coincide with a scheduled transport date, it
shall be the responsibility of the Sheriff of Cook County to make the appropriate
transportation arrangements.

5. Knox County shall not charge Cook County for an IIC’s first day of housing at the Knox
County detention facility.

H. Release From Custody: The Cook County Sheriff will notify the Knox County Sheriff
immediately if a Cook County IIC housed in the Knox County Detention Center is released from
the custody of the Cook County Sheriff, by a court order or other proper and lawful avenue. The
Cook County Sheriff shall transport said IIC back to Cook County for his or her release.
Alternate transportation locations are subject to mutual agreement between the Sheriffs of Cook
and Knox Counties or their designees.

I. Indemnification: To the extent allowable by law, Knox County shall be responsible for and shall
indemnify, defend, save and hold Cook County, the Sheriff of Cook County, and their
Commissioners, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities,
claims, demands or suits brought by any IIC of Cook County housed pursuant to this Agreement
arising out of any willful or negligent act or omission of Knox County, the Knox County Sheriff,
or any agents, officers, or employees thereof while any IIC of Cook County is in the care or
control of the Knox County Sheriff.

To the extent allowable by law, Cook County shall be responsible for and shall indemnify,
defend, save and hold Knox County, the Sheriff of Knox County, and their agents, officers, and
employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities, claims, demands or suits brought by
any IIC of Cook County housed pursuant to this Agreement arising out of any willful or negligent
act or omission of Cook County, the Cook County Sheriff’s Office, or any of its agents, officers,
or employees thereof while any IIC is housed with the Knox County Sheriff.

It is further agreed that all employee benefits, wage and disability payments, pension and
worker’s compensation claims, damage to or destruction of equipment, facilities, clothing and
related medical expenses of the Sheriff of Knox County or his agents or employees which may
result from the presence of Cook County detainees during contractual incarceration shall be the
responsibility of Knox County.

Neither party waives its immunities or defenses, whether statutory or common law, by reason of



indemnification and insurance provisions of the Agreement.

J. Final Agreement of Parties; Modification: This writing constitutes the final expression of the
agreement of the Parties. It is intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of this
Agreement, and it supersedes all prior and concurrent promises, representations, negotiations,
discussions and agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof.
No modification of this Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties hereto unless the same is in
writing and appropriately executed by both Parties.

K. Notice: All Notices given or sent hereunder shall be sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to respective party at the following addresses:

Cook County: General Counsel
Cook County Sheriff’s Office
50 W. Washington, Room 704
Chicago, IL 60602

Knox County: Knox County Sheriff’s Office
Attn: Knox County Sheriff
152 South Kellogg Street
Galesburg, IL 61401

L. Authorization: Cook County and Knox County represent that all necessary acts have been taken to
authorize and approve this argument in accordance with applicable law and this Agreement, when
executed by the parties hereto, shall constitute a binding obligation of Cook County and Knox
County, legally and enforceable at law and equity against both.

M. Severability Clause: If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, that provision shall be
stricken from this Agreement and the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect to
the fullest extent possible.

N. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (including facsimile signatures),
each of which shall be deemed to be an original and both of which shall constitute one and the same
Agreement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned duly authorized officers have subscribed their name on behalf of the 
County of Cook and the County of Knox.

COUNTY OF COOK

______________________________________ Date: _______________
Toni Preckwinkle, President

ATTEST:

______________________________________ Date: _______________
Karen Yarbrough, County Clerk

Acknowledged:

______________________________________ Date: _______________
Thomas J. Dart
Cook County Sheriff

Approved as to Form

______________________________________ Date: _______________
State’s Attorney

COUNTY OF KNOX

______________________________________ Date: _______________
Jared M. Hawkinson, Chairman

ATTEST:

______________________________________ Date: _______________
Scott G. Erickson, County Clerk

Acknowledged:

______________________________________ Date: _______________
Jack Harlan
Knox County Sheriff



Draft as of 2-23-2024 

Page 1 of 2 

Minutes for Knox County Committee Meeting for Highway, Landfill, Facilities and IT Tuesday, February 20, 2024 at 6:00PM  
In accordance with social distancing requirements, Governor Pritzker’s Executive Orders 2020-43 and 2020-44, and Section 7(e) of the 
Illinois Open Meetings Act (see Public Act 101- 0640), this meeting will be held both in person and virtually.  

Zoom Application: Meeting ID: 729 532 7867 or Phone: 312-626-6799 ** 

** The Zoom Meeting ID and passcode (if needed) should be part of the email setting the meeting schedule 
Call Meeting to order: 
Invited Member’s to Attend: Sam Cohen (x), Kim Thierry (x), Anthony Weiss (x), Todd Olinger (no), Cheryl Nache, (x) & Robert 
Bondi (x);  
Invited Department Heads & Others in attend: Rod Cleair (x), Duane Ratermann (x), Nate Appler (x) and David Amor (no) 
Other in attendances: Greg Bacon and Carolyn Ginder 
Public Comment: None 
Business  
The Agenda was Approve as is: Motion by Anothy Weiss, second by Cheryl Nache, motion carried unanimously.  

Approve Open and Closed Minutes of 1-16-24 Meeting; Motion by Robert Bondi, seconded by Kim Thierry, motion carried 
unanimously. 

LANDFILL 
1. Report: Attached
2.Claims: Sent directly
3. Action Item: None

Discussion items: 
a Approve the following Closer Line Item Increases:  1st) Profession Service, current budget $250,000.00, amount increase 
of $250,000.00 adjust budget $500,000.00; 2nd) Closer Activity Cost, current budget $2,500,000.00, amount increase of 
$2,5000,000.00, adjusted budget $5,000,000.00; 3rd) Contingencies, current budget $110,000.00, amount increased 
of$110,000.00, adjust budget $220,000.00; 4th) Transfer in Reserves, current budget $2,740,000.00, amount increase of 
$2,740,000.00, adjust budget $5,480,000.00.  Motion by Robert Bondi, seconded by Cheryl Nache, motion carried 
unanimously.   
b. Note that there was later determined that another error occurred and that the Transfer in Reserves should read as follows.
4th) Transfer in Reserves, current budget $2,860,000.00, amount increase of $2,860,000.00, adjust budget $5,720,000.00 and
all of both Discussion items “a” and “b’ shown above will be further reviewed at the Way and Means Committee Meeting on
2-22-2024 for final determination and if approved will be voted on by the full board with other line item changes from the
Chair.
c. Tree Sap bid to be approved by the Infrastructure Committee Chair and Rod Cleair as historically being obtained from
Environmental Road Solution, operated by Kevin Cundiff who is the only provider of these services within 100 miles of
Knox County since the amount of the services will be within the established limits of the authority granted for items under
$15,000.00 and will be reviewed after the acceptance of the bid.
d. Rod Cleair reported that we had a violation letter from the EPA that is mostly incorrect and being handled by Foth to
obtain a reversal letter which should occur within the next couple of weeks.
e. Rod Cleair reported that we will need to be installing a Gas Management System and the specification will be developed
by Foth and brought to the Infrastructure Committee to review later this year.

FACILITIES 
1. Report: Attached
2. Claims:
3. Action Item: None
4. Discussion items:

a. Approve Klingner Invoice # 79705 in the amount of $7,500.00 for 50 East Main Street evaluation of building; Motion by
Robert Bondi and seconded by Cheryl Nache, motion carried unanimously.  It was noted that the funds and approval of this
invoice was approved in November of 2023 and the voucher and resolution will be prepared by Scott Erickson and not be an
action item but placed in the system for bill approval.

HIGHWAY 
1. Report: Attached
2. Claims: Attached
3. Action Item(s):

a. Approve purchase of a new 1/2-ton pickup truck; Motion by Robert Bondi and seconded by Sam Cohen, motion carried
unanimously.



Draft as of 2-23-2024 

Page 2 of 2 

4. Discussion Item:
a. Duane Ratermann reported that he will be starting to study for the back up position of the Landfill Administrator and will
be taking the test on or around May 7th, 2024.

Information Technology “IT” & Help Desk 
1. Report: Attached
2. Claims: Attached
3 Action Item(s): None
4. Discussion Items: Nursing Home Server is on ordered per Greg Bacon question of Nate Appler.
Approve Claims for All Departments & have the Committee Chair sign the bills/claims; Motion by Robert Bondi, seconded by
Sam Cohen, motion carried unanimously.

Old Business: None 
New Business: None 

Executive Session if necessary:  Personal Items & Facilities Bids and Authorizations: None 

Adjourn: Motion made by Kim Thierry, seconded by Cheryl Nache, Motion carried unanimously at 6:36P. 

Respectfully submitted by Robert Bondi, Chairman 



















































Report Generated By  : Knox County IL

Generated On  : 12 Mar 2024 04:10 PM

Department Name: Knox County IL

IT-30-Tickets

Status (Ticket)

Closed (6)

Open (2)
Total records in this page :8 Records

1















BROADBAND COORDINATOR REPORT 
February 13 – March 14, 2024 

Because of my hip surgery on February 16 and subsequent recovery, I was not able to put in 
many hours on broadband matters during the past month.   

Broadband Grants: 
1. Still no official word on the Connect IL broadband grants.  I know from Troy Nimrick that

the Oneida Telephone Rio and Henderson Township projects are definitely going to be
funded. He will contact me in advance of a public announcement by the Office of
Broadband, so that we can prepare a press announcement that highlights the County’s
partnership and participation in these projects.

2. In a recent conversation with Office of Broadband staff, it appears that they are still
actively considering Connect Illinois Round 3 proposals, with a final round of
submissions to be reviewed starting in April.  This means it is still possible that the
Frontier proposal for Knox County could be awarded.  As we get closer to the County’s
drop-dead date of June 30th for the obligation of funds for the Frontier project
($1,115,000), I will try to monitor the status of this proposal.  Office of Broadband is
aware of the deadline for final obligation of ARPA funds, so will try to expedite review of
this last round of proposals to get any grants awarded before the end of December
2024, but I believe the County should still hold to the June 30th date, to give the County
Board time to find alternative uses for those funds.

Broadband Challenge process: 
1. So far, all the rural Knox County residents who have contacted me about the broadband

service available at their residences have proved to be correctly designated as
“unserved” on the BEAD Challenge map.  This is cold comfort to them in their search for
better service, though in some cases I have been able to suggest fixed wireless
alternatives that might work better for them.  I have been able to assure them that being
designated as unserved puts them in the highest priority areas for BEAD projects going
forward.

2. I have submitted a challenge for about 150 locations in Knox County that were
incorrectly identified on the BEAD Challenge map as “served” because the FCC
incorrectly assumed that Stratus provided residential service.  Stratus cooperated and
provided me with documentation that they only provide business service and also
reviewed all the locations I had identified to remove any legitimate business locations.
Stratus is also cooperating with the Office of Broadband to correct this mistake in other
counties where it operates.

3. The “window” for submitting challenges to the accuracy of the BEAD map closes on
March 18.  After that there is a month during which providers can provide rebuttals and
the process for determining the final map will conclude in May. At that point we will
know exactly which locations in the County will be priorities for inclusion in the BEAD
grant process.



Digital Equity: 
1. The major development in this area has been the winding down of the FCC’s Affordable

Connectivity Program (ACP) which provides a $30 per month subsidy to qualifying
household towards the cost of a broadband subscription.  Unless there is a last-minute
change of heart in Congress, this program will close at the end of April.  Around 2,260
households in Knox County are enrolled in ACP, almost all in Galesburg, Abingdon and
Knoxville, and most with Comcast.  To try to raise public awareness about the coming
end of the subsidy program, which will either mean losing broadband access or facing a
significant increase in the monthly cost, I was able to generate a news story by jane
Carlson on TriStates Public Radio which ran this week and was also circulated to public
radio stations throughout the state.

2. Because of my recovery from surgery, I have not made any progress this month with a
local Digital Equity plan.  This continues to be an important but complicated priority
going forward.

Time Expended:  February 13 – March 14:  6 hours 

Respectfully submitted:   
David Amor, broadband coordinator 























































THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK & RECORDER 

NICOLE BYERLY  ● MELANIE RICE-WEIK 
CORY TEEL   ●   GLORIA CLIFF  

ANNA BROWNLEE 

KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG

Knox County Board and Committee 
Meetings Calendar 

MARCH 2024 

The following is a list of the meetings of the standing Committees for the Knox 
County Board for the above referenced month. 

Public Safety and Justice Committee  
March 18, 2024 at Annex conference room at 6:00 PM 

Infrastructure Committee 
March 19, 2024 at Annex conference room.  Starting at 6:00PM 

Health and Human Services Committee 
March 20, 2024 at Annex conference room.  Starting at 6:00 PM 

Ways and Means Committee 
March 21, 2024 at Annex conference room.  Starting at 6:00 PM. 

Executive Committee 
March 21, 2024 at Annex conference room.  Starting at 5:00PM 

IT Department Meeting 
March 13 2024 via teleconference.  Starting at 9:30 AM. 

Knox County Board Meeting – Regular Meeting 
March 27, 2024 at Galesburg City Hall. Starting at 6:00 PM. 
Zoom Meeting ID = 729 532 7867 

Zoom option will be available to the viewing public only.  Any public 
comment statements should be made in person at meeting. 


	Board Packet Cover - March 2024
	Board Call - March 2024
	Agenda - March 2024
	Board Minutes - February 2024
	Action Item - PROCLAMATION - Public Health Week 2024
	Action Item - PROCLAMATION - County Government Month 2024
	Action Item - Appointment - Galeburg Sanitary 2024 Landon
	Agenda - Ways and Means Committee - March 2024
	Committee Minutes - Ways and Means - February 2024
	Department Report - County Clerk - March  2024
	Department Report - Treasurer - March 2024
	Department Report - Assessor - March 2024
	Department Report - Assessor Bills - March 2024
	Report - Personnel Report - March 2024
	Action Item - Budget Calendar 2024 2025
	Action Item - Courthouse Ramp Replacement Bids - March 2024
	Bid Tabulation - ADA Entrance 2024
	Bid - Laverdiere - March 2024
	Bid - Otto Baum Company - March 2024
	Bid - Hein Construction - March 2024
	Bid - Brandt Construction - March 2024

	Committee Minutes - Public Safety - February 2024
	Committee Minutes - Public Safety - March 2024
	Department Report - Sheriff - March 2024
	Department Report - MDH - March 2024
	Action Item - Catering Contract - Warren Sheriff - March 2024
	Action Item - IG Inmate Housing - Warren County - March 2024
	Action Item - IG Inmate Housing - Cook County - March 2024
	Committee Minutes - Infrastructure - February 2024
	Department Report - Highway - March 2024
	Department Report - IT - March 2024
	Report - IT Ticket Report - March 2024
	Department Report - Landfill - March 2024
	Report - Broadband Coordinator Report - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy Bridge Replacement - Lynn Twp - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy Authority - Salt Procurement - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy Road Improvement Hwy 3 - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy - Aggregate Bids - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy Bid Tab - Aggregate and Spread - March 2024
	Actiom Item - Hwy Bituminous - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy Bid Tab - Bituminous Materials - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy - Culvert - March 2024
	Action Item - Hwy Bid Tab - Culvert Pipe - March 2024
	Department Report and Minutes - NH - March 2024
	Reports - Board of Health Minutes - March 2024
	Report - KCAP - March 2024
	Action Item - Budget Changes - March 2024
	Action Item - Manual Check Report - March 2024
	Meeting Calendar - March 2024

	Return to agenda: 


